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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Territorial Capital of Alabama was established at St. Stephens in 1818. 
Huntsville served as capital for 1819 and part of 1820, then Cahaba 1820-1826, 
then Tuscaloosa 1826-1847. In 1846 the State legislature chose Montgomery 
as a new permanent capital city, provided the people of Montgomery paid all 
the expenses for the removal of capital records and construction of the 
capital building.

Architects from New York, Baltimore and New Orleans entered the competition 
in 1846 for the design of the Montgomery Capital. Stephen Decatur Button 
(1813-1897) was awarded the contract. Button was born in Connecticut and 
began his career as a house builder in Hoboken, New Jersey. He went south 
in 1843 and is know to have worked in Florida, Augusta, Georgia and other towns 
and was engaged in other work besides the capital in Montgomery in early 
1848. That year he left the south and went to Philadelphia where he opened 
an office, while living in Camden, New Jersey. Later in the century he again 
did some work in the south, particularly in New Orleans.

Appointed as superintendant of construction for the Montgomery Capital in 
1847 was George Nichols, an English born architect who arrived in America in 
the mid-nineteenth century. All the buildings he is known to have designed 
were located in Alabama. In 1840 he completed the president's house at the 
University of Tuscaloosa. None of his other buildings are known to have 
survived the Civil War.

The top of Goat Hill was chosen as the site for the capital building. This 
elevation is at the head of Dexter Avenue, Montgomery's main business street 
and overlooks this whole section of the town. The building was completed 
and turned over to the State October 26, 1847, and was first occupied by the 
legislature in December 1847. Two years later, on December 14, 1849, while 
the second biennial legislature was in session, a fire destroyed almost the 
entire building, only the masonry foundations and part of the walls were left.

The legislature argued about moving the capital back to Tuscaloosa, but 
decided to remain in Montgomery, and in February 1850 appropriated money to 
rebuild the destroyed capital, on the same site, based on the original 
plans. By this time Stephen Decatur Button was practicing in Philadelphia, 
however, for the rebuilding he was named superintendant of construction and 
he maintained contact by mail with Montgomery until 1856. For the rebuilding, 
George Nichols was named architect, although the work was based on Button's 
plans for the first buildings, including the dome and portico, the most 
distinctive exterior features of the simple but well-proportioned building. 
The building was completed in time for the legislature to mee* there 
October 1, 1851. The clock was placed in the tower in February 1852. The 
building was originally square but has been extended on three sides and 
is now T-shaped.

The exterior walls are stucco over brick and the 97 foot dome is metal painted 
white. The interior walls are of sand-finished plaster, with hail floors of
marble and office floors of pine. The original plan of the building
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Alabama State Capitol was the meeting place for delegates from six Southern 
States, February 4-8, 1861. There they adopted a provisional constitution for 
the Confederate States of America, and the Confederate Congress continued to meet 
there until the capital was moved to Richmond in May 1861.

The original Capitol building, designed by Stephen, Decatur Button •;was completed in 
Montgomery during 1847. During the session of the legislature on December 14, 
1849, the building was almost entirely destroyed by fire. Wo^k on a new 
building, based on the original plans, began immediately and the second building 
was completed in 1851 and is the central portion of the Alabama State Capitol 
of today.

HISTORY

On January 11, 1861, following the election of Abraham Lincoln as President of 
the United States, Alabama's Seccession Convention voted to withdraw from the 
Union. On February 4, six Southern States met to form a provisional Confederate 
Constitution. South Carolina had been the first to secede, on December 20,
1860. The Alabama Ordinance of Secession was the fourth, following South 
Carolina, Mississippi, and Florida. By February 4 they had been joined Georgia 
and Louisiana. Texas had also seceded, but did not attend. On February 7, 
the 37 delegates considered a "Constitution for the Provisional Government 
of the Confederate States of North America." The word "North" was stricken, 
and on February 8 the constitution was unanimously adopted.

February 9 Jefferson Davis of Mississippi was unanimously elected President of 
the Confederation and Alexander Stephens of Georgia became Vice President. With 
great celebration., Davis was inaugurated February 18 on the west portico of the 
Capitol and-afterwards the original Confederate flag, the Stars and Bars, was 
raised for the-.fir.st,time, .over the building.

t 
The permanent Confederate constitution was adopted in this building on March 11,
1861. One month later Confederate guns fired on Fort Sumter. The Confederate 
Congress continued to meet in Montgomery for another month, when the capital 
was moved to Richmond May 22, 1861, following Virginia's entrance into the 
Confederacy.
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The Alabama State Capital and its grounds occupy approximately 9 acres on the 
top of Goat Hill, overlooking Montgomery. The grounds are bounded on the 
north by Monroe Street, on the east by Union Street, on the west by Bainbridge 
Street and on the south by Washington Street, along each of the sides by the 
inside curb of the street nearest the capital grounds.
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(as seen in enclosed plan) is rather simple. The Senate and House today still 
occupy the same rooms as first intended, with slight alterations. The 
Supreme Court, however, has been moved out of the original portion of the 
building.

The 1934 HABS report cited the cantilevered double stairway which rises two 
stories inside the main entrance and the rotunda as the most marked features 
of the plan. "In the main stair hall we find one of the few existing double 
circular stairs of ambitious public character. The rotunda, while not large 
is very well proportioned to the size of the building and to the Senate 
and House chambers." The report also described the elevation and dome as of 
"exquisite design"and singled out the dome drum and the capitals of the six 
portico columns as particularly distinctive.

In 1885-1886 the first addition, the east wing, was constructed by contractors 
Figh and Williams to provide space for the Supreme Court, the library and 
offices of the Court of Appearls. The south wing, completed in 1907, and the 
north wing, completed in 1911, were designed by Charles F. McKim of New York, 
and Frank Lockwood of Montgomery. The entire building was renovated in 1934, 
and the State is currently planning a new restoration and renovation of the 
building.

The capital building's grounds were planned by the firm of Frederick Law 
Olmsted in the end of the nineteenth century and still contain some rare 
and beautiful shrubbery and trees as well as several historical monuments.
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